Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners' Meeting
September 12, 2017

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, September 12, 2017 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Carolyn Casey, Commissioner
Eber Warren and Commissioner Cliff Braly.

Board members absent: Commissioner Tim Fowler

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager; Adam Garfinkel, Chairman Planning Board;
Cathy Hurm, Karen & Pete Hall, Diane Lemieux, Rock Rockwell, Tom Hills, Jim Jelsone,
Danny Lupton, Chris Loboda, Scott Zillioux, Mike Askew & Henry Dehart.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm
with a moment of silence and lead everyone in the pledge of alliance to the flag.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the September 12, 2017 BOC agenda.
Commissioner Warren moved to approve the agenda as revised. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to August 8, 2017 regular meeting
minutes. Commissioner Braly moved to approve the August 8, 2017 minutes. All ayes.

Public Comments:

Cathy Hurm asked when the holes on Phillips Drive would be repaired. Commissioner
Braly reported that preliminary work had been done and the hot asphalt application had
been scheduled for the previous week but was cancelled due to rain from Hurricane Irma.
He said as soon as the streets dried the asphalt would be rescheduled.

Karen Hall asked the BOC to please deny the zoning amendment to rezone Lot 62C, Mill
“Creek Phase [, in Arlington Place from single family to mutti=family: -She said her concern
was there are a number of unimproved lots in Arlington Place and if this rezoning was
approved, it could open up the door for other lot owners to do the same. She said she would
not want that to happen next door to her home or to her neighborhood.

Diane Lemieux said she was unsettled by having “strangers” (renters) coming through their
neighborhood...not knowing who they are. She said she would not want more multi-family
homes in AP. She asked the BOC to not approve the rezoning of Lot 62C, Mill Creek
Phase I, Arlington Place.

Rock Rockwell said he and his wife retired to Arlington Place because they wanted to live
in a community like Arlington Place. He said he had concerns about property value
dropping with more multi-family units going in. He said renters do not feel the same
concerns for the amenities provided by Arlington Place as the homeowners. He said stuff
has to be picked up by the outfitters cottages, the club house, the tennis & basketball courts
that was left out or left behind by the renters.

Tom Hills agreed with what has been said and added his biggest concern was property
value. He said because of the recession, Boddie Noell’s reaction was to change Arlington
Place from a high-end community concept to cottages and smaller things. He said this was



not what he bought into. Mr. Hills said having renters is one more nail in the coffin to terms
of lowering property values.

Jim Jelsone said he was in total agreement with everyone else’s comments. He said he
purchased his lot in 2007 and none of these rentals were in the plans. All were supposed to
be single family lots until they got to Phase III. He said they were told Arlington Place was
going to build one set of cottages to be used by families coming in to buy and/or to build.
He said then they built more & more. He said this needs to stop. He said he opposed any
rezoning of single family lots to multi-family lots.

Chris Loboda said he was from a small town in NY and retired here to his forever home.
He said he was one of first homeowners in Arlington Place. He said he had never been in
favor of having the rental cottages. He said when it was proposed to them, there was to be
only 3 cottages and they were for people to come down to see the area, stay there a little bit
and purchase a lot. It was never supposed to be a “rental” unit! He said he had told the
developers he was opposed to the cottages; that was not why he had bought here. He said
when you buy a lot you know what the rules are and live with them or you sell your lot.
You cannot just change the rules to suit yourself! He said he was firmly opposed to any
more zoning changes taking place by anyone.

Scott Zillioux said he agreed and supported all of the comments regarding re-zoning. This
is the lifestyle he & his wife bought into and they do not want any more changes.

Mayor Potter thanked everyone for their comments and said the issue would be addressed in
Old Business.

Town Manager’s report: No zoning permits were issued. She congratulated Mr.
Garfinkel on the birth of his first child, Eloise (Miss Ellie) Marie Garfinkel, August 22,
2017 at 7:12am, weighing in at 7lbs 100z and 21" long. Mayor Potter said he had an A+ in
diaper changing.

Planning Board Report: Chairman Garfinkel thanked Mayor Potter for his service to
the town. Chairman Garfinkel reported the Planning Board did not meet in September
because they had no new business. He reported the PB had recommended to the BOC
at their August meeting to deny the zoning amendment application.

Hearing on Noise
Mayor Potter asked for a motion to leave the regular meeting session to go into an
open hearing. Commissioner Warren so moved. All ayes.

Mayor Potter said the purpose of this hearing is to respond to a complaint from a town
citizen concerning a noise ordinance violation, Section 93.02(¢c). Mayor Potter read
meeting and read into the record Mr. Dave Stewart’s 9/12/17 email: “I hear the daily
bugles and announcements in my house and bedroom all through the summer and also
on weekends. Over powers volume in my TV in porch and living room at times. I
know others hear as well and [ feel respect for all residents should be given by our
neighbors including the camp.”

Henry Dehart said the camp director John Hyde apologizes that he could not attend the
meeting tonight because he had to be out of state on a mandatory training. Mr. Dehart
said he had been the camp director for about 10 years but is now working in Raleigh.



He said he had been a full-time resident of Pamlico County twice. He introduced
Mike Askew, a full-time resident of Pamlico County and a long-time employee of the
camp. Mr. Dehart said they want to be a good neighbor and to do that. He said they
do use a PA system principally for three purposes in the summer months (9 weeks at
Camp Sea Gull): 1. PA system is used on a daily schedule, using a military bugle, to
wake the kids and call them to meals. Kids are not allowed to carry their iPhone or
iWatches. 2. The PA system is used as an emergency/safety system to find a missing
kid or warn of an incoming storm. 3. The PA system is occasionally use to make
special announcements of things outside of the daily schedule. This has been done
since the camp was opened in 1948. He said they try to judicious about how they use
the PA system and added they had not made any modifications or amplification to the
system, expect repairs. Mr. Dehart said after the Town’s initial complaint they had
someone come out to check the speakers on the Minnesott Beach side of the camp to
make sure they were pointed and angled into the camp. In addressing the music
complaint, he said music is played over the PA system for the call-to Sunday services.
Mr. Dehart said they have a portable system they use for the mixers when they bring
the girls over from Camp Seafarer and that could have been what was heard. Mr.
Dehart said one of their problems was John Hyde was not aware the camp had been
contacted directly and consequently could not pin point what was happening on the
camp that brought about the complaints. He said the camp hired Mr. Lupton of
Lupton Electronics to take sound measurements and made a report. The report is
made a part of these minutes by reference and may be reviewed in the Town Hall. All
commissioners have a copy. Mr. Dehart said the camp is working on long range plans
to better manage the PA system by adding more speakers. In response to the
complaint that a CenturyLink technician had told Mr. Stewart they had amplified the
PA system, Mr. Dehart gave the mayor a report he had requested from CenturyLink on
the work they had done at the camp. The report showed the work done was repair to
existing speakers. Mr. Dehart said the camp relies on the PA system for a number key
operations, but they want to be good responsible neighbors. He thanked the BOC for
their time. Mayor Potter asked if the board had any questions. Commissioner Warren
said he pulled up a decibel exposure chart. He said the report Mr. Lupton passed
shows that all PA sounds coming from the camp fall within acceptable ranges and
‘have no effect on anyone’s hearing. Mayor Potter read into the record Mr. Stewart’s
calls & emails of complaints. Commissioner Braly said our noise ordinance is non-
specific in reference to decibel levels. He asked what would be considered reasonable
and normal decibel levels? ~ Mr. Lupton responded by saying they helped Oriental set
decibel levels for their ordinance. He said it can get very detailed with db levels for
daytime, evenings and special events. Mayor Potter said the ordinance is a general
ordinance and the town has no quantitative way to measure a violation of this
ordinance and need look at it and possibly change it. He said he was not sure why the
camp was annexed into the Town of Minnesott Beach in 2006.

Commissioner Braly to leave the hearing and go back into regular session. All ayes.

Old Business: for discussion and possible motion or action.

Noise Complaint — Mayor Potter said the board needs to determine whether to move
forward with the complaint or not. He recommended the BOC not take any action due

the camp is grandfathered-in. That the complaint does not rise to a violation of the




ordinance. Commissioner Warren moved that the complaint did not rise to a violation
of the ordinance. All ayes.

Appeal by Mr. William Conklin of the denial of the BOC on his Application for
‘Zoning Amendment — Mayor Potter read into the record Mr. Conklin’s email
regarding the denial of his application for a zoning amendment and is made a part
herein by reference. Mayor Potter addressed each of his points as follows:

1. Lots 62A to 62E were not initially subdivided: Mayor Potter said this is true.

2. When they were subdivided, it was under an amended filing that specifically stated
that multi-family was not precluded: Mayor Potter said this is not true, there was no
designation on the plat plan as to what those lots were. They on the plat like all of the
rest of the lots. The Town purposes for the zoning administrator, they were treated
them as homesite lots, single family lots.

3. This is not "spot" zoning and in fact Minnesota Beach has allowed the developer to
build multi-family on multiple other lots under the same amendment: Mayor Potter
said this is “spot” zoning because the adjacent lots on either side are single family lots.
4. Lot 62C is the last remaining lot covered by this amendment so not only has
precedent been already set, this is the last lot so covered: Mayor Potter said this is not
true.

5. Itis true that I didn't include written documentation from the owners of Lots 62B
and 62D but they both verbally agreed via telephone and I included this info in an
email: Mayor Potter said he got contradicting information when he spoke to the
owners of Lots 62B & 62D and Mr. Conklin’s information is hear-say.

Mayor Potter said Mr. Conklin purchased his lot in October 2007 as a single-family
lot. Mayor Potter said Mr. Conklin is looking for consistency. The Town is being
consistent. Mayor Potter said Lots 62B, 62C & 62D are single family lots. In the fall
of 2012 Arlington Place approached the BOC to rezone Lots 62, 62A & 62E from
single family lots to multi-family lots. Those are the only 3 lots they wanted changed.
The BOC approved a revision to the Master Plan in 2012 and did not include Lots
62B, 62C or 62D. Mayor Potter said he questioned Donna Reynolds about how the
lots were being marketed and she said as single family lots. She said the revised
Master Plan verifies they are single family lots. Mayor Potter said Mr. Conklin is
referring to a declaration that Arlington Place made that the lots were not homesites
and not limited to single-family. Mayor Potter said the approved Revised Plat Plan
trumps any declaration made by Arlington Place. He said the Planning Board was
correct in their findings and recommendations as stated in the BOC minutes of August
8, 2017: “It was inconsistent with the compressive plan adopted for Arlington Place
and in discord to officially adopted Town plans. Lot 62C Mill Creek, Phase I, is
identified on the Arlington Place Master Plan as single-family and was purchased as a
single-family lot. There is a concern about setting precedent regarding “spot” zoning
amendments and property lot subdivision.” Which was unanimously approved by
BOC.

Mayor Potter said the BOC is not under judicial review when they vote it is not in the best
interest of the community and does not meet the long-range planning for AP or for the town.
Mayor Potter said there is no precedence set because AP is operating under an approved
Master Plan. Commissioner Braly moved that there have been no additional facts or
‘information given to change the official action of the BOC August 8, 2017 in denying Mr.
Conklin’s application for a zoning amendment and we stand by that vote. All ayes.



Mr. Pete Hall said in Arlington Place there is an advisory committee made of some
homeowners. There is only one homeowner on the HOA board and she is an
employee of the developer.

will be done next week. He reported all the materials are on CCDW and they will be able to
finish when there are 3-4 dry days. He reported the addition to the Town Hall is
progressing in a timely fashion after the roof pitch was corrected. Mayor Potter thanked
Commissioner Braly for all of his work.

New Business

Arlington Place letter of credit: Mayor Potter reported the town received on September
11, 2016, a request from the Burton Farms Development Co, LLC, Letter of Credit for the
Arlington Place roads. They are asking for a $836,000 LOC which is a reduction of
approximately $877,600. Mayor Potter read the engineer’s report into the record and is
made a part herein by reference. Commissioner Braly moved to reduce the Letter of Credit
by the amount of the cost of work completed with verification of payment as of September
12,2017. All ayes.

Mayor Potter asked the Town Manager to let Doug Anderson of Burton Farms know of the
decision of the BOC.

Redistricting of Pamlico County by State Legislature: Mayor Potter presented a
Resolution written by Commissioner Fowler regarding redistricting of the House of
Representatives. They have grouped Pamlico County with Currituck, Hyde & Dare
Counties. Pamlico County Commissioners adopted a resolution August 18, 2017 that
opposes this grouping because, among other issues, these counties are contiguous and do
not share common interests. Commissioner Warren moved to pass the Resolution Opposing
the 2017 Redistricting NC House Bill #66. All ayes.

Renewal of CD’s: Commissioner Warren reported that two CDs are maturing on 9/11/17
($20,270.85) & 9/15/17 ($40,423.92). He reported the renewal interest rates are: 13
months @ 0.75%, 21 months @ 1.05% and 30 months @ 1.19%. After some discussion,
Commissioner Braly moved to renew both CDs for 21 months @1.05% interest. All ayes.

Financial Report — Commissioner Warren reported revenues are coming in as expected
with expenses below expectations. All are well within our budgeted totals. He reported the
Town’s.current assets as-of August 31, 2017 are: First Citizen's Bank Checking $5,382.79;
First Citizen's MM $182,195.53; First South Bank & Savings $217,517.86; North Carolina
Management Trust is $202,056.70; Petty Cash $50.00. The town currently has CDs at First
South Bank & Savings ($75,000; $50,000; $40,249.74; $21,173.62, $20,901.71;
$20,174.76). Total assets to the Town are a total of $856,273.29.

ComZissioner Warrei moved to adjourn. All ayes.

Donna Scott, Town Clerk



